
CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Monday, 1 April 2019 at 5.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business

1  Apologies 

2  Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

The Committee is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on  4 March 2019.

3  Implementation of Universal Credit in Gateshead (Pages 7 - 8)

Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources

4  Review on Helping to increase support to Voluntary and Community Sector 
- Evidence Gathering Session 4 (Pages 9 - 12)

Report of the Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

5  Contract Monitoring: Infrastructure Support to the Voluntary and 
Community Sector in Gateshead (Pages 13 - 30)

Report of the Acting Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

6  Freedom of Information Annual Report (Pages 31 - 34)

Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Resources and Governance

7  Annual Work Programme Review and Forward Plan (Pages 35 - 40)

Report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance

Contact: Sonia Stewart - Tel: 0191433 3045 - Email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk, 
 Date: Friday, 22 March 2019

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING

Monday, 4 March 2019

PRESENT: Councillor John Eagle (Chair)

Councillor(s): W Dick, J Wallace, R Beadle, D Bradford, 
L Caffrey, M Charlton, J Green, S Green, M Hall, M Henry, 
B Oliphant and N Weatherley

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): K Wood

CR20 MINUTES 

RESOLVED:
 

(i)            The minutes of the last meeting held on 21 January 2019 were approved 
as a correct record.

CR21 REVIEW ON HELPING TO INCREASE SUPPORT/CAPACITY OF THE 
VOLUNTARY SECTOR:  EVIDENCE GATHERING SESSION NO 3 - FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE 

The Committee received a report to provide details of the variety of funding 
programmes that are available to provide financial assistance available to 
community and voluntary sector groups in Gateshead.
 
Representatives from three organisations were also in attendance to provide the 
Committee with an update on activities and support available through their 
respective organisations, these were: The National Lottery Community Fund, The 
Ballinger Charitable Trust and The Community Fund.
 
From the presentation the Committee were advised that The Community Foundation 
(Tyne and Wear and Northumberland) is arguably the biggest and best organisation 
of its kind in the UK, and part of a national and global movement that started in 1914 
that matches generous people to important causes in the community. 
 
The following was also highlighted:
 
•      Each year hundreds of grants are awarded to small charities across NE England, 

through funds set up by numerous donors. 
•      It also seeks to encourage greater investment in the region by national funders 

and help broker relationships between community organisations and people 
wishing to donate time and expertise. 

•      It has four identified priorities: Poverty, mental health and wellbeing, diversity and 
inclusion and funding “cold spots” where funding is scarce.

•      From September 2016 394 grants (totalling £1.54m, ranging from £200-£35,000) 
have been awarded in Gateshead. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



•      The median annual grant size for Gateshead over the last 3 years was £3,916: 
markedly lower than for Newcastle (£5,396) or Sunderland (£4,300).. 

•      The Foundation will try to: 
o   Work with donors to prioritise Gateshead. 
o   Use its discretionary funds to target Gateshead as a “cold spot”. 
o   Encourage more and better applications through building the capacity of 

Gateshead’s VCS and increasing the level of access to Community 
Foundation funds.

 
The Committee were advised that The Ballinger Charitable Trust is a small family 
run Trust that invests in small local projects and charitable causes in the North East. 
From their presentation, the following was highlighted:
 
•      It has a simple and easy online application process for its main grants programme 

(up to £5,000) with priorities around young people and older people. 
•      Grants will cover most costs, including core costs. 
•      It collaborates with other charities and funding partners on larger projects. 
•      It has recently piloted two smaller community level micro grant programmes in 

Chopwell and Bensham and Saltwell which involved meeting project leads as 
they pitched for small amounts of funding (circa £500 maximum). 

•      The Trust values personal engagement and relationships with applicants 
recognising the need for support and encouragement and helps the Trust gain a 
better understanding of community needs. 

•      The Trust understands the burdens on VCS organisations and recognises the 
need to do things differently by simplifying its funding programmes to reduce 
bureaucracy and complexity – placing fewer demands on applicants. 

•      It understands that better use of data, appropriate targeting of (ever reducing) 
resources and effective collaboration would increase the potential impact in 
Gateshead. 

 
From the presentation, the Committee were also advised that The National Lottery 
Community Fund (previously Big Lottery) is a national distributor of funds raised by 
players of the National Lottery. The following points were highlighted from their 
presentation:
 
•      £8.6 million has been invested in Gateshead over the past five years (including 

£557,376 Awards for All, £3.8 million Reaching Communities and £3.5 million 
other programmes). 

•      The organisation has recently introduced a dedicated North East and Cumbria 
hub and a team of local funding officers facilitating improved flexibility, local 
knowledge and funding decisions.

•      A simpler guidance and processes has been implemented for its three major 
programmes – Awards for All, Reaching Communities and Partnerships funding 
– with priorities to support building stronger relationships in communities, shared 
and sustainable places and spaces (places that matter locally) and early action to 
prevent problems and tackle disadvantage (addressing problems at the earliest 
possible stage). 

•      The application process is predominantly online but can be hard copies can be 
made available if necessary. 

•      National Lottery Awards for All offers up to £10,000 in one year for smaller 

Page 4



grassroots VCS organisations and larger organisations that are valued by their 
communities – it will fund one off activities or test new ideas and applications 
welcomed at any time throughout the year.

 
The Committee thanked the representatives for their presentations and welcomed 
the changes being implemented to make grant funding applications more 
streamlined and simpler.
 
It was asked whether The Community Foundation do outreach work in the borough 
to source potential donors. It was stated that outreach work is carried out but that 
Gateshead is a ‘cold spot’ area for donors but it was acknowledged there are 
pockets of wealth in Northumberland and Newcastle. It was further noted that there 
is funding available without a donor being attached which can also be accessed.
 
A comment was made noting that online applications and systems can be difficult to 
navigate for many people; it was acknowledged by each organisation that this 
process can be daunting but that staff are always on hand to provide support if 
needed. The Committee also highlighted their gratitude to the Council’s 
Neighbourhood Management Team who have provided support to Councillors on 
funding and applications in the past.
 
RESOLVED:
 

(i)            The Committee considered and noted the contents of the report.
 
 

CR22 ANNUAL REPORT - INFORMATION GOVERNANCE AND THE COUNCIL'S USE 
OF POWERS UNDER THE REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 
2000 

The Committee received a report providing an overview of arrangements for 
Information Governance across the Council. 
 
From the report it was highlighted that public trust in the way public services handle 
and share data is increasingly important, particularly in the context of greater digital 
storage transfer of information. It was also highlighted that success in this area 
depends on many factors, but effective and secure exchange and management of 
information is vital for both food service delivery and for compliance with an 
increasingly onerous and prescriptive legislative framework at both a national and 
European level.
 
It was noted from the report that the Council formed an information rights working 
party in March 2017 to start preparing for GDPR implementation. The following work 
that has been done was highlighted from the report:
 
a)    Information asset registers have been completed, these contain the information 

we are required to compile under Article 30.
b)    Privacy notices have been prepared.
c)    Web pages have been updated to include contact details of the Data Protection 

Officer and to advise people how they can exercise their new rights.

Page 5



d)    Consent forms have been revised to be GDPR compliant.
e)    Data Collection forms and systems have been re-engineered to comply with data 

minimisation and privacy by design.
f)     Over 300 contractual agreements have been reviewed.
g)    Forms and procedures have been devised for privacy impact assessments.
h)    All schools have received training.
i)     Training for governors has taken place.
j)     Training for Councillors has taken place, Councillors have been provided with an 

awareness leaflet.
k)    Over 560 face to face training sessions have been delivered to Council, GHC, 

NEPO and school staff.
l)     This training was supplemented with a DVD which is on the intranet and a staff 

awareness leaflet.
m)  Contract variation letters and data processing addendums have been sent to our 

suppliers. GDPR compliant clauses have been drafted for all new contracts.
n)    Model data controller/processor agreements and data sharing agreements have 

been prepared.
o)    Data breach reporting procedures and privacy impact assessment procedures 

and forms have been devised.
p)    All information rights working party members have been trained on how to use 

them.
 
The Committee were also made of a variety of data breaches as highlighted in the 
report and the changes that were implemented to prevent them happening again. It 
was acknowledged that within every organisation there will be data breaches and 
that such breaches can now be reported to the Data Protection Officer (DPO) via a 
new mailbox.
 
From the report the Committee were provided with an overview of the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). It was highlighted that the Protection of 
Freedoms Act 2012 amended RIPA to restrict when Councils can use RIPA. It was 
noted that an authorisation for directed surveillance of CHIS can only be made by 
Councils if certain conditions are met. It was also stated that Gateshead Council 
uses its powers under RIPA when it is appropriate to do so; details of which were 
provided within the report.
 
RESOLVED:
 

(i)            The Committee endorsed and noted the contents of the report.

CR23 ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME 

The Work Programme report and appendix was submitted to the Committee for 
information.
 
RESOLVED:
 

(i)            The Committee noted the Work Programme 2018/19.

Chair……….………………..

Page 6



1

TITLE OF REPORT: Implementation of Universal Credit in Gateshead

REPORT OF: Darren Collins, Strategic Director Corporate Resources

___________________________________________________________________

SUMMARY

This report updates Corporate Resources OSC on the implementation of Universal Credit 
within Gateshead and the issues arising to date.
Dr Mandy Cheetham of Teesside University will provide a presentation to the committee on 
the research undertaken into the impact of the roll out of Universal Credit in Gateshead.
___________________________________________________________________

Background

1. The Welfare Reform Act 2012 introduced a number of changes:

 Universal credit to replace 6 main benefits
 Housing Benefit reductions for under-occupation
 Cap on overall benefit of £26,000 (£18,200 for single persons)
 Council Tax Benefit replaced by Local Council Tax Support Schemes
 Disability Living Allowance replaced by Personal Independence Payments
 Responsibility for Discretionary Social Fund transferred to local authorities

2. Universal credit has been implemented in Gateshead in 2 phases. In 2015 “Live” 
service was introduced (for single, non-householder, no children, new Job Seeker 
Allowance claimants), followed by the rollout of “Full” service in October 2017 (for new 
claims and changes of circumstances). All Universal Credit claims are made via an 
online application resulting in a single household payment paid monthly in arrears.

3. The migration of existing Housing Benefit claimants to Universal Credit is now 
scheduled to be completed by June 2024.

Support arrangements

4. To support this implementation of Universal Credit, the Council agreed a Delivery 
Partnership Agreement with DWP upto 31 March 2019 to provide Universal Support, 
which mainly included assisted digital support and personal budgeting support.  As 
part of this agreement the Council together with the Gateshead Housing Company   
provide a range of services offering support and advice to claimants.

5. With effect from 1 April 2019, Citizens Advice has become responsible and is funded 
by DWP for “Help to Claim” support, which is to assist claimants with their on line claim 
to the first payment stage. Citizens Advice has not been funded for Personal budgeting 
support. The council and The Gateshead Housing Company continue to work with 
Citizens Advice Gateshead to optimise the use of resources to provide the necessary 
support to claimants. 

Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee
1 April 2019

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



2

6. Dr Cheetham’s presentation to committee will outline the findings of the research into 
the impact of Universal Credit on Gateshead residents. In particular, the mental and 
physical health of claimants and the associated social, financial and employment-
related issues affecting claimants.

Recommendation

7. The views of the Corporate Resources OSC are sought on:

 The issues arising from the implementation of Universal Credit in Gateshead.

Page 8



1

             

TITLE OF REPORT:   Review on Helping to Increase Support / Capacity of the 
Voluntary Sector: Evidence Gathering Session No. 4 – 
Oasis Community Housing – Supporting vulnerable 
people.  

REPORT OF: Anthony Alder, Acting Strategic Director Communities 
and Environment 

__________________________________________________________________

Summary

This is the final evidence gathering session for this review of ways to help increase the 
support and capacity within the voluntary and community sector (VCS) in Gateshead.

Oasis Community Housing is a charity based in Gateshead that has over many years, 
delivered a range of services to some of Gateshead’s most vulnerable residents.  

Committee will hear from Oasis Community Housing Chief Executive, David Smith and 
Phil Conn, Head of Crisis Services.

“Basis” is a place-based concept the charity has developed in a number of areas across 
the country. The project which provides support, help and advice to homeless people or 
those facing homelessness. This innovative approach has created new ways of working, 
multi-agency collaboration and an effective community hub (Progress House).  

1. Introduction

1.1 At its meeting in October 2018, Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee agreed the scope for a review to help develop the understanding of the 
type of support required by Gateshead’s Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), 
where it is needed the most and why, and in the light of this, where the Council’s 
role, support and resources may best be focussed to maximise impact. The aims of 
the Review were agreed as:

 establish the extent and nature of the types of support the Council currently 
provides to the VCS across a spectrum of service areas

 how this activity is resourced and coordinated
 assess the effectiveness of this Council support in helping the VCS address the 

needs of Gateshead residents.

The review is facilitated through a series of Evidence Gathering sessions.   

2. A summary of the first three Evidence Gathering Sessions

2.1 Session 1 (held 3 December 2018) provided Committee with a summary of 
Gateshead VCS infrastructure and the Council support still available to the sector. 

REPORT TO CORPORATE RESOURCES
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

1 April 2019

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2

The information provided highlighted the estimated number of charities (876 
registered with the Charity Commission) and other similar organisations (750-1000 
other VCS organisations) operating in Gateshead’s communities. It outlined the 
Council’s significant financial support available for organisations through grants, 
contracts and commissions and Non-Domestic Rate relief. It also highlighted the 
Services offering Information, Support and Guidance and the Council’s role in 
promoting, co-ordinating and brokering over 8,000 volunteer roles and volunteers.

Dr Jo Price, Chair of Trustees at the Comfrey Project, also presented to 
Committee offering an insight into the work of her charity in Gateshead, and how 
working together with the Council is making a difference to the lives of 
Gateshead’s refugees and asylum seekers.

2.2 Session 2 (held 21 January 2019) included presentations from Brighten Ryton and 
Dunston Activity Centre highlighting the excellent work that both organisations 
undertake in their respective localities. Committee discussed how the 
organisations could work better with the Council and other partners.

Aiden Lawson, Chair of Brighten Ryton, informed Committee of its role in 
supporting the Council to improve the local environment in Ryton, highlighting 
examples of work in local cemeteries, parks and improvements for some local 
heritage sites. The Group has provided almost 9,000 volunteer hours and fund 
raised more than £30,000 in its first two years of operation. It aims to expand its 
scope and increase its impact in future years and highlighted some areas where its 
efficiency could be enhanced through an improved interface with the Council.   

Ed Nicholls, Chair of Dunston Family Church, talked about the Church’s steep 
learning curve after taking on the responsibility for Dunston Activity Centre (and 
volunteer library) following a recent Asset Transfer from the Council. The Church 
through its volunteers and employees aims to improve the well-being of the local 
community through local activities and the provision of community space. Ed 
talked about how the organisation has had to learn about Governance, due 
diligence, health and safety, financial and business planning, developing capacity 
and operating a community café. Whilst the Centre is doing well, financial 
sustainability remains a challenge as the Church always looks to offer services at 
lower cost or free. 
 

2.3 Session 3 (held 4 March 2019) included presentations from three key local funders 
(Community Foundation Tyne & Wear and Northumberland, The Ballinger 
Charitable Trust and the National Lottery Community Fund). The funders covered:

 What they do and the opportunities they provide
 How they currently support the sector 
 What outcomes/priorities they would like to see 
 How Gateshead compares regionally/nationally regarding their funding 

programmes
 How could their impact in Gateshead be increased?
 What can partners (like the Council) do to maximize take up/increase 

effectiveness of their resources in Gateshead
 What can/should VCS organisations do themselves/collectively to increase 

take up/effectiveness - highlighting any common failings that restrict local 
take up.

Page 10



3

2.4 The presentations were followed by a short discussion covering some of the 
collective learning and recommendations to maximize the combined potential for 
working with Gateshead’s communities. 

2.5 Some of the key feedback and top tips from the session included: 
 Always read the guidance thoroughly before applying – if in doubt get in 

touch. 
 Ensure the organisation and the project are eligible. 
 Have all information required ready at the time of submission. 
 Ensure accounts/bank statements are timely and accurate and unrestricted 

reserves are beneath any eligibility threshold. 
 Use data, local intelligence and consultation to demonstrate community 

needs (avoid duplication). 
 Wherever possible try to get other funding to support your project. 

2.6 A Members’ Seminar is being organised for early July to offer all ward councillors 
a further opportunity to hear about some of the financial assistance available to 
Gateshead’s Voluntary and Community Sector.

3. The Context for Evidence Gathering Session 4

3.1 Since 2011 Basis@Gateshead (Basis) has welcomed more than 750 people 
annually. The individuals that Basis supports are in need of information, advice, 
guidance, advocacy and practical support. They also need a safe space to work 
out what’s causing their problems and how best to set about trying to tackle them. 

3.2 Now located at Progress House, Warwick Street, Gateshead. Basis has become 
the place where people with multiple, complex and overlapping needs go to begin 
their journey into housing, recovery and wellness. Basis is the only service in 
Gateshead offering day provision for people sleeping rough as well as assistance 
around accessing and maintaining housing.

3.3 As Basis is the only service in Gateshead providing day provision for rough 
sleepers the charity is in a unique position. Clients visit Basis because they want 
to, it is a safe space and a place of community for them. Over the last seven 
years staff have built up trust and a relationship with individuals who are 
considered hard to reach. This relationship enables help and support to be built 
around the individual rather than refer out and run the risk of traumatising them 
further or losing them as they fall through service gaps. This service is one 
example of the targeted collaborative provision required as part of the Council’s 
Thrive agenda.

3.4 In October 2018, the charity moved into brand new premises in central 
Gateshead. The new premises, formerly the probation service office, aptly named 
‘Progress House’ gives the space to be able to carry out all of the services 
residents need and enables partner services to be able to work from the same 
location thereby creating a joint service to those facing homelessness and 
multiple needs. 

4. Recommendation

Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to:
 

Page 11



4

 Consider and comment on the information provided in the case study by 
representatives Oasis Community Housing in the context of the review of 
Council support.

   
__________________________________________________________________

Contact: Anthony Alder ext. 3880

Page 12



1

             

TITLE OF REPORT:   Contract Monitoring: Infrastructure support to the 
voluntary and community sector in Gateshead

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington, Acting Strategic Director, Communities 
and Environment 

__________________________________________________________________

Summary

This report has been prepared by Newcastle Council for Voluntary Service (NCVS) to 
outline their performance and activity associated with the contract awarded to them in 
August 2018 for provision of infrastructure services to Gateshead’s voluntary and 
community sector.

Context

1. Following a competitive procurement exercise the Council carried out in conjunction 
with Newcastle City Council, Newcastle CVS was awarded a 3 year contract to cover 
the provision of infrastructure support services for the Borough’s voluntary and 
community sector, which commenced on 1st August 2018 

2. The following table is a summary version of the information provided by NCVS, and 
outlines activity associated with the performance measures contained in the contract 
delivered between 1st August 2018 and 31st January 2019. Attached at Appendix 1 is 
the detailed submission from NCVS, and Appendix 2 sets out in summary form the key 
areas of activity as specified in the contract to help provide the context for the 
performance. 

Performance 
Measure

Monitoring 
Frequency Activity

Number of Networking 
Activity events 
delivered

 6 monthly 9 (NCVS AGM included)

Number of 
organisations who 
engaged in 
Networking Activity 
Events (per event)

6 monthly

 Gateshead Voluntary Leaders Group
(07/08/18) – 9 organisations
(26/10/18) – 7 organisations

 Gateshead Care System (20/08/18) – 22 
organisations attended / 20 organisations working in 
Gateshead

 Children and Young Peoples Forum (18/09/18) – 16 
organisations attended / 10 organisations working in 
Gateshead

 Wellbeing and Health Open Forum (25/09/19) – 16 
organisations attended / 11 organisations working in 
Gateshead

 Newcastle CVS Annual General Meeting (12/11/18) 
– 20 organisations

REPORT TO CORPORATE RESOURCES
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
1st April 2019

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2

 Take a Mo-Ment: Movember on Tyne (22/11/18) – 31 
organisations attended / 26 organisations working in 
Gateshead

 Gateshead Council 2019/20 Budget Consultation 
(27/11/18) – 8 organisations:
(14/12/18) – 6 organisations

Feedback responses 
on satisfaction and 
usefulness of events 
(per event)

6 monthly See page

Feedback responses 
on satisfaction and 
usefulness of policy 
briefings 

6 monthly
Feedback is overwhelming positive about e-inform and 

Inform, which include updates on new policy and 
legislation

Gateshead 
organisations who 
access support from 
NCVS

6 monthly 53

Organisations 
signposted to third 
party organisational 
support services by 
NCVS

6 monthly

5 organisations signposted to:
 Byker Community Association
 Short Richardson & Forth
 Tyne & Wear Community Foundation
 Gateshead Council Volunteering

Number or training 
activities delivered 6 monthly

 Negotiating and Managing Property Leases 
(17/09/18) – 10 attendees from 9 organisations 
working in Gateshead

 Good Governance (14/11/18) – 5 attendees from 4 
organisations working in Gateshead

 Fundraising for Beginners (27/11/18) – 6 attendees 
from 6 organisations working in Gateshead

 Introduction to Crowdfunding (06/12/18) – 3 
attendees from 2 organisations working in 
Gateshead

 General Data Protection Regulations (12/12/18) – 8 
attendees from 5 organisations working in 
Gateshead

Feedback responses 
on satisfaction and 
usefulness of training 
activities 

ongoing See page 9 of the report

Number of 
organisations 
supported by NCVS to 
submit funding 
applications

6 monthly 7 organisations supported to submit funding 
applications worth £789,328

Items added/updated 
and deleted by 
registered user on 
OurGateshead

6 monthly

700 Items added/updated
317 items added
151 items deleted ( Nov 2018 – Jan 2019 – New 
monitoring)

Number of visits to 
OurGateshead 
website

6 monthly 64,777 visits (149,111 page views)

Total number of 
groups registered on 
OurGateshead

6 monthly 1,095 groups listed on 31 Jan 2019

Page 14



3

Indicators reported annually

 reported satisfaction from Gateshead organisations regarding the quality and impact of 
Newcastle CVS representation of the VCS sector

 Number of organisations contributing to a coordinated sector response by NCVS to 
Council budget consultations

 Publication of a key facts, issues and trends paper setting out Gateshead specific 
details on sector characteristics, key trends, emerging best practice and emerging 
issues

 Satisfaction with support services directly delivered by NCVS to Gateshead 
organisations

 Number of Gateshead organisations in receipt of Newcastle CVS newsletters and 
circulars

 Amount of funding secured by Gateshead organisations as a direct result of NCVS 
support

Recommendations

3. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to:

- Comment on the attached report with reference to the performance and activities 
delivered by Newcastle CVS.

David Andrew ext.  3824

Page 15



4

Appendix 1 

Gateshead Monitoring 1 August 2018 to 31 January 2019

Internal

The award of the Gateshead infrastructure contract in June 2018 and the feedback in 
August 2018, meant the mobilisation of the contract could not start until we had 
established whether shared posts and services were appropriate between the Gateshead 
and Newcastle infrastructure contracts. Once this consent had been given, Newcastle CVS 
designed a staffing and service structure which matched the requirements of the new 
Gateshead infrastructure contract. This restructure led to a new Infrastructure Team being 
appointed, and in order to follow proper employment practices, the new team was not in 
post until January 2019. Although this delay was unfortunate, the additional resources 
provided by CVS meant that external targets were still met.

The Gateshead Infrastructure Team consists of:

Giovanni Spatuzzi Manager
Mark Shilcock OurGateshead
Emma Warden Infrastructure Officer
Barbara Hind Infrastructure Officer

And additional support from:
Amy McKie Marketing and Communications
Sally Young Chief Executive

The team is currently up to full complement

Strategic Work 
Budget There has been significant input into the Gateshead budget process as well as 
general promotion of the proposed Gateshead budget to the voluntary and community sector. 
There were two specific meetings arranged with the sector, a full response to all the proposals, 
discussions with key officers and councillors, and the Chief Executive convened a meeting 
between Mental Health Matters, Gateshead Council Officers and NHS Partners. 

Health There has been involvement in the Gateshead Health and Care Partnership, which 
includes convening a meeting together with Blue Stone Consortium, to ensure that key voluntary 
organisations were kept involved and updated on the progress of this initiative. The Chief 
Executive attends the Gateshead Health and Wellbeing Board, reflecting the perspectives of the 
voluntary and community sector. 

Gateshead Council and Voluntary Sector Group The Chief Executive and other CVS staff and 
trustees have attended the four meetings of this group, engaged in agenda –setting and promoted 

Page 16



5

it to the voluntary sector. There been two meetings of the Gateshead Voluntary Sector Leaders 
Group in this period. 

Thrive Gateshead The Chief Executive and other CVS staff have attended Thrive events, 
Thrive Board, subgroups, and contributed to ideas and initiatives. 

Key Leaders There are regular meetings with senior leaders (councillors and officers), 
quarterly meetings with the Leader of Council and Newcastle CVS Chair, Chief Executive, Director 
of Public Health, presentation to DMT, visits to voluntary organisations and meetings with Chief 
Executives, presentation to Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Newcastle CVS AGM (held at St 
Mary’s Heritage Centre). Active engagement in Blue Stone Consortium and Well Newcastle 
Gateshead. 

Gateshead Community Safety Board As the voluntary and community sector representative 
we attended the September and January meetings. We inputted information from a voluntary and 
community sector perspective and feedback information to the sector.

Making Every Contact Count (MECC) During this period key Newcastle CVS staff have been 
trained as trainers in order to deliver training to voluntary and community organisations in Mental 
Health First Aid, Motivational Interviewing, and key public health messages around alcohol, 
physical activity, healthy weight. We have worked closely with MECC leads to deliver a pilot 
tailored short programme of MECC skills-building to Healthwatch Gateshead outreach volunteers. 
Linking the MECC work with our broader Infrastructure offer, we’ve continued to encourage 
organisations to think about the health improvement dimensions of their current and proposed 
services, and stressing how articulating this more clearly to funders increases their likelihood of 
funding success 

OurGateshead To improve information quality we have started to actively monitor the quality 
of posts as they are added to OurGateshead to ensure they are correctly listed on the area and 
themed pages. Groups have been contacted to remind them of the need to keep their information 
up to date. Partnerships have been made with Dementia Alliance, organisations supporting ex-
service personnel and asylum seekers to ensure that accurate information is posted via the site. 
We have been working with Newcastle University’s Open Lab to redesign the site based on user 
feedback. 

Hate Crime Advocacy Advocacy Centre North, a service area of Newcastle CVS, is seeing 
groups becoming more vocal and abusive to politicians with tensions increasing as Brexit 
discussions become more difficult. In the past this has led to an increase of hate incidents targeted 
at our communities. Hate Crime Advocates can help individuals speak up for themselves, find out 
about their rights, report a hate crime to Police, understand the criminal justice process and get the 
services or support they need.

Reports issued in this period:

 LGA Adult Social Care response

 House of Lords on Social Care Funding

Performance Measures

Number of Networking 
Activity events delivered:

9 events:
1. Gateshead Voluntary Leaders Group (07/08/18)
2. Gateshead Care System (20/08/18)
3. Children and Young Peoples Forum (18/09/18)
4. Wellbeing and Health Open Forum (25/09/18)
5. Gateshead Voluntary Sector Leaders Group (26/10/18)
6. Newcastle CVS Annual General Meeting (12/11/18)

Page 17



6

7. Take a Mo-Ment: Movember on Tyne (22/11/18)
8. Gateshead Council 2019/20 Budget Consultation (27/11/18)
9. Gateshead Council 2019/20 Budget Consultation (14/11/18)

Number of 
organisations who 
engaged in Networking 
Activity events (per 
event):
 Organisation name
 Thematic/geographic 

focus
 Annual income

Gateshead Voluntary Leaders Group (07/08/18) – 9 
organisations:

1. Gateshead Older People’s Assembly – Older People/Gateshead 
– £51-150k
2. Carers Trust Tyne & Wear – Carers/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. Children North East – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead – £51-150k
5. Your Voice Counts – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Youth Focus North East – Young People/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
7. Alzheimer’s Society Gateshead – Dementia/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
8. Age UK Gateshead – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k
9. Tyneside Mind – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k

Gateshead Care System (20/08/18) – 22 organisations attended / 
20 organisations working in Gateshead:

1. Gateshead Older People’s Assembly – Older People/Gateshead 
– £51-150k
2. Edberts House – Community/Felling – Over £250k
3. Changing Lives – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. Disability North – Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k
5. Mental Health Concern – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Age UK Gateshead – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k
7. CBC Health – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
8. Gateshead Mental Health User Voice – Mental Health/Gateshead 
– Over £250k
9. British Red Cross – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
10. Food Nation – Food/Gateshead – Over £250k
11. Children North East – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
12. Concern Group – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
13. H.C. Horizons – Business Consultants/Gateshead – £11-£50k
14. Gateshead Council – Local Authority – Over £250k
15. Mental Health Matters – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
16. Teamwork Development Trust – Older People/Gateshead – £51-
150k
17. Oasis Aquila Housing – Housing/Gateshead – Over £250k
18. Independent Age – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k
19. Involve North East – Health/Gateshead – £151-£250k
20. Carers Trust North East – Carers/Gateshead – Over £250k

Children and Young Peoples Forum (18/09/18) – 16 
organisations attended / 10 organisations working in 
Gateshead:

1. The Key – Funding/Gateshead – Over £250k
2. Skills for People – Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. The Percy Hedley Foundation – Disability/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
4. Stepney Bank Stables – Young People/Gateshead – Over £250k

Page 18



9

5. Food Nation – Food/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Streetwise – Young People/Gateshead – Over £250k
7. Youth Focus North East – Young People/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
8. Props North East – Substance Misuse/Gateshead – Over £250k
9. Investing in Children – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
10. Carers Trust Tyne & Wear – Carers/Gateshead – Over £250k

Wellbeing and Health Open Forum (25/09/19) – 16 organisations 
attended / 11 organisations working in Gateshead:

1. Gateshead Mental Health User Voice – Mental Health/Gateshead 
– £11-£51k
2. PeerTalk – Mental Health/Gateshead – £11-£51k
3. Skills for People – Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. International Glaucoma Association – Health/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
5. The Hardman Centre – Carers/Gateshead – £51-150k
6. Tiny Lives – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
7. CBC Health – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
8. Grange Day Centre – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k
9. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead – £51-150k
10. Ruth Abrahams Independent Living Fund – Disability/Gateshead 
– £51-150k
11. NIWE Eating Distress Service – Mental Health/Gateshead – 
£151-£250k

Gateshead Voluntary Sector Leaders Group (26/10/18) – 7 
organisations:

1. Youth Focus North East – Young People/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
2. Young Women’s Outreach Project – Women Girls/Gateshead – 
£151-£250k
3. Barnardos – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. Citizens Advice Gateshead – Advice/Gateshead – Over £250k
5. Oasis Aquila Housing – Housing/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Carers Trust Tyne & Wear – Carers/Gateshead – Over £250k
7. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead – £51-150k

Newcastle CVS Annual General Meeting (12/11/18) – 20 
organisations:

1. Gateshead Older Peoples Assembly – Older People/Gateshead – 
£51-150k
2. VONNE – Infrastructure/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. The Lawnmowers Independent Theatre Company – 
Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. Friends of Saltwell Park – Environment/Bensham – £11-50k
5. Dementia Matters – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Friends of Whickham Library Garden – Environment/Whickham – 
£11-50k
7. Tyne Rivers Trust – Environment/Gateshead – Over £250k
8. Sir James Knott Trust – Funder/Gateshead – Over £250k
9. Tyne & Wear Community Foundation – Funder/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
10. Greggs Foundation – Funder/Gateshead – Over £250k
11. National Energy Action – Environment/Gateshead – Over £250k

Page 19



10

12. Involve North East – Health/Gateshead – £151-250k
13. Living Streets – Environment/Gateshead – Over £250k
14. Newcastle University – Education/Gateshead – Over £250k
15. Gateshead Mental Health User Voice – Mental 
Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
16. Citizens Advice Gateshead – Advice/Gateshead – Over £250k
17. Disability North – Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k
18. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead - £51-150k
19. South Mountain Chinese Older Peoples Association – Older 
People/Gateshead – £11-50k
20. Shelter – Homelessness/Gateshead – Over £250k

Take a Mo-Ment: Movember on Tyne (22/11/18) – 31 
organisations attended / 26 organisations working in 
Gateshead:

1. PeerTalk – Mental Health/Gateshead – £11-£51k
2. Versus Arthritis – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. Tyne & Wear Fire And Rescue Service – Fire/Gateshead – Over 
£250k
4. Northern Heart – LGBTQ/Gateshead – Under £10k
5. Food Nation – Food/Gateshead – Over £250k
6. Teamwork Development Trust – Community/Gateshead – £51-
£150k
7. Citizens Advice Gateshead – Advice/Gateshead – Over £250k
8. Involve North East – Health/Gateshead – £151-250k
9. Gateshead Older People’s Assembly – Older People/Gateshead 
– £51-150k
10. Age UK Gateshead – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k
11. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead – £51-150k
12. Cancer Research UK – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
13. Newcastle University – University/Gateshead – Over £250k
14. Victims First Northumbria – Police/Gateshead – Over £250k
15. Ryton Men’s Shed – Men Boys/Gateshead – £11-50k
16. Barnardos – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
17. International Glaucoma Association – Health/Gateshead – 
Over £250k
18. Streetwise – Young People/Gateshead – Over £250k
19. Northumbria Police – Police/Gateshead – Over £250k
20. Samaritans – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
21. Healthwatch Gateshead – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
22. Diabetes UK – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
23. Skills4Work – Employment/Gateshead – Over £250k
24. Recyke y’bike – Health/Gateshead – £151-250k
25. Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust – Health/Gateshead 
– Over £250k
26. Kooth – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k

Gateshead Council 2019/20 Budget Consultation (27/11/18) – 8 
organisations:

1. Carers Trust Tyne & Wear – Carers/Gateshead – Over £250k
2. Healthwatch Gateshead – Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. Citizen Advice Gateshead – Advice/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. Gateshead Older People’s Assembly – Older People/Gateshead 
– £11-£51k
5. Richmond Fellowship – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k

Page 20



11

6. Gateshead Mental Health User Voice – Mental Health/Gateshead 
– Over £250k
7. Barnardos – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
8. Mental Health Concern Group – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over 
£250k

Gateshead Council 2019/20 Budget Consultation Second 
Meeting (14/12/18) – 6 organisations:

1. Gateshead Mental Health User Voice – Mental Health/Gateshead 
– £11-£51k
2. Citizen Advice Gateshead – Advice/Gateshead – Over £250k
3. Richmond Fellowship – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k
4. Barnardos – Children/Gateshead – Over £250k
5. Young Women’s Outreach Project – Women Girls/Gateshead – 
£151-250k
6. VOLSAG – Mental Health/Gateshead – £51-150k

Feedback 
responses on 
satisfaction and 
usefulness of 
events (per event)

Children and Young Peoples Forum (18/09/18)

 Linking with other organisations to identify gaps and access 
more service users.

 Enabled me to link up with other providers and 
organisations to enable us to support each other and work 
together to support children and young people.

Wellbeing and Health Open Forum (25/09/18)

 2 way communications and connectedness with community 
and VCS.

 Opportunity to connect with other agencies on relevant 
topics.

 Valuable for information, inside track on issues and for 
networking.

 Opened up collaborative opportunities.
 Feel more confident in the information we share with the 

people with we work with.

Take a Mo-Ment: Movember on Tyne (22/11/18)

 Enabled greater knowledge of local services.
 Support advice. Clarity over specific issues.
 Helped to increase my awareness of opportunities, 

networks and services in VCS.
 It’s an organisation that centralises knowledge, services and 

resources which is essential in utilising resource constraints 
such as time. It is therefore an efficient and effective central 
hub.

 Networking. Organised facilitators to attend and deliver 
sessions for our young dads (men). Really enjoyed the 
speakers!

 Keeps us informed and in touch with what’s going on with 
other organisations.

Going forward we will record feedback responses on satisfaction and 
usefulness of all events.

Page 21



12

Feedback 
responses on 
satisfaction and 
usefulness of 
policy briefings

Produced 13 fortnightly electronic bulletins (e-inform issues 247 to 258) 
sent to 863 subscribers across Newcastle and Gateshead
Produced 2 quarterly printed magazines (Inform Autumn and Winter 2018) 
sent to 1400 people across Newcastle and Gateshead
Feedback is overwhelming positive about e-inform and Inform, which 
include updates on new policy and legislation. Going forward we will record 
feedback responses on satisfaction and usefulness of policy briefings.

Gateshead 
organisations who 
access support 
from NCVS

Organisation name
Thematic/geographic 
focus
Annual income
Type of support

53 organisations:

1. 3 Steps Project North East – Housing/Gateshead – Under 
£10k – Funding, Organisational Development and more
2. Age UK Gateshead – Older People/Gateshead – Over £250k 
– Funding and more
3. Birtley Community Partnership – Community/Birtley– £11-50k 
– Funding and more
4. Blaydon Youth & Community Centre – Community/Blaydon– 
£151-250k – Legal Structure and Governance
5. Break the Silence Mental Health – Mental Health/Gateshead 
– Under £10k – Funding and Organisational Development
6. Ryton Volunteer Group – Community/Ryton – Under £10k – 
Funding
7. Gateshead Evolve – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k 
–
Legal Structure, Governance and more
8. Chilli Studios – Arts/Gateshead – £151-250k – Funding
9. Chopwell and Blackhall Mill Live at Home Scheme – Mental 
Health/Chopwell and Blackhall – £11-50k – Funding
10. Chopwell Community Association – Community/Chopwell – 
£11-50k – Legal Structures
11. Chopwell Wood Riding Association – Sport/Chopwell – 
Under £10k – Governance
12. Clara Vale Conversation Group – Environment/Clara Vale – 
Under £10k – Legal Structure
13. Comfrey Project – Asylum Seekers/Refugees/Gateshead – 
£51-150k – HR and more
14. Crossing Community Group – Asylum Seekers/Gateshead – 
£11-50k – Funding and more
15. Edberts House – Community/Feeling – Over £250k – 
Funding
16. Elgin Community Kitchen – Food/Gateshead – Under £10k 
– Legal Structures and Funding
17. Equal Arts – Arts/Gateshead – Over £250k – Governance 
and Organisational Development
18. Family Church Gateshead – Faith/Gateshead – Under £10k 
– Policies and Procedures
19. Felling Community Association – Community/Felling – £11-
50k – Legal Structure, Governance and more
20. Flight Inn Travel – Asylum Seekers/Refugees/Gateshead – 
Under £10k – Legal Structure
21. Friends of Felling Park and Town Centre – 
Community/Felling – Under £10k – Legal Structure, Governance 
and more
22. Friends of Saltwell Park – Environment/Bensham – £11-50k 
– Governance

Page 22



13

23. Friends of Gateshead Cheder – Children/Bensham – £11-
50k – Funding
24. Gateshead Access Panel – Disability/Gateshead – £11-50k 
– Closing Organisation
25. Gateshead Carers Association – Carers/Gateshead – Over 
£250k – Troubleshooting
26. Gateshead Cheder – Children/Bensham – £11-50k – 
Funding
27. Gateshead Clubhouse – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over 
£250k – Funding
28. Gateshead Football Club Community Foundation – 
Sport/Gateshead – £11-50k – Legal and Regulatory
29. Gateshead Muslim Society – Faith/Gateshead – £11-50k 
Governance, Funding and more
30. Gateshead Redheugh 1957 – Sport/Gateshead – £151-250k 
– Legal Structures, Funding and more
31. Gateshead Sea Cadets – Sport/Gateshead – £11-50k – 
Governance
32. Gateway Studio Project – Arts/Gateshead – £11-50k – Legal 
Structures
33. Hertfordshire House Community Association – 
Community/Pelew – £11-50k – Legal Structures, Funding and 
more
34. Jewish Community Council of Gateshead – Faith/Gateshead 
– Over £250k – Funding and Organisational Development
35. Lamesley Childcare – Children/Gateshead – £51-150k – 
Governance
36. Leam Lane Community Association – Community/Leam 
Lane – £11-50k – Funding and Troubleshooting
37. Making Changes North East – Mental Health/Gateshead – 
Under £10k – Legal Structure and Funding
38. Mental Health Matters – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over 
£250k – Funding
39. NE Youth – Young People/Gateshead – Over £250k – 
Governance
40. NIWE Eating Distress Service – Mental Health/Gateshead – 
Over £250k – Funding
41. Northern Jazz Band – Music/Gateshead – £11-50k – Legal 
Structures and Governance
42. Northumbria Coalition Against Crime – Community 
Safety/Gateshead – Over £250k – Funding
43. Oasis Aquila Housing – Housing/Gateshead – Over £250k – 
Governance
44. Path Head Water Mill – Environment/Path Head – £11-50k – 
Funding
45. Peace of Mind – Asylum Seekers/Refugees/Gateshead – 
£11-50k – Funding and Organisational Development
46. Soundroom Community Music Project – Music/Gateshead – 
£11-50k – Funding, Organisational Development and more
47. Streets Ahead – Young People/Gateshead – £11-50k – 
Closing Organisation
48. Sunniside History Society – History/Sunniside – Under £10k 
– ICT and Digital Development
49. Swalwell Juniors Football Club – Sport/Swalwell – £11-50k – 
Governance and Organisational Development
50. The Lawnmowers Independent Theatre Company – 
Disability/Gateshead – Over £250k – Organisational 
Development

Page 23



14

51. Tyne United Rowing Club – Sport/Gateshead – £11-50k – 
Governance
52. Tyneside Mind – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k – 
Funding and Governance
53. Wayout in Gateshead – Education/Gateshead – £151-250k 
– Legal Structure and Funding

Organisations signposted 
to third party 
organisational support 
services by NCVS

5 organisations signposted:

1. Friends of Saltwell Park – Environment/Bensham – £11-50k 
– Organisational Development – Byker Community Association
2. Equal Arts – Arts/Gateshead – Over £250k – Legal – Short 
Richardson & Forth
3. Friends of Felling Park and Town Centre – 
Community/Felling – Under £10k – Funding – Tyne & Wear 
Community Foundation
4. Leam Lane Community Association – Community/Leam 
Lane – £11-50k – Funding – Tyne & Wear Community 
Foundation
5. Tyneside Mind – Mental Health/Gateshead – Over £250k – 
Volunteering – Gateshead Council Volunteering

Number of training 
activities delivered

Negotiating and Managing Property Leases (17/09/18) – 10 
attendees from 9 organisations working in Gateshead

1. St.Oswalds Hospice
2. Guide Dogs
3. VONNE
4. Tyneside Outdoors
5. Oasis Aquila Housing
6. Stepney Bank Stables
7. Parents in Power
8. H.C. Horizons
9. St. Vincent de Paul Society

Good Governance (14/11/18) – 5 attendees from 4 
organisations working in Gateshead

1. The Derwent Initiative
2. Oasis Aquila Housing
3. Gasbags North East
4. Sensory Spaces

Fundraising for Beginners (27/11/18) – 6 attendees from 6 
organisations working in Gateshead

1. The Derwent Initiative
2. St. Vincent de Paul Society
3. Pug Dog Welfare & Rescue Association
4. World Congress of Global Peace and Prosperity Foundation
5. Bridge & Tunnel Productions
6. Eternity

Page 24



15

Introduction to Crowdfunding (06/12/18) – 3 attendees from 
2 organisations working in Gateshead

1. RNLI
2. Families First For Additional Needs

General Data Protection Regulations (12/12/18) – 8 
attendees from 5 organisations working in Gateshead

1. The Derwent Initiative
2. Recyke y’bike
3. Pathhead Water Mill
4. Electrical Waste Recycling Group
5. Crossings Community Group

Number of organisations supported 
by NCVS to submit funding 
applications

7 organisations supported to submit funding 
applications worth £789,328

Items added/updated and deleted by 
registered user on OurGateshead

700 Items added/updated
317 items added
151 items deleted ( Nov 2018 – Jan 2019 – New 
monitoring)

Number of visits to OurGateshead 
website

64,777 visits (149,111 page views)

Total groups registered on 
OurGateshead

1,095 groups listed on 31 Jan 2019

Case Studies

Friends of Felling Park and Town Centre – Organisational development support (29/10/18)

Newcastle CVS worked with committee members to produce an 18 month development plan 
reviewing and developing organisational:

 Strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats
 Vision, mission and values
 Development aims
 Core activities
 Development aim actions
 Approach

The workshop and the development plan highlighted the challenge ahead for the committee and 
gives clear aims, actions and activities to overcome these challenges with the support from 
Gateshead Council and Newcastle CVS. Feedback from committee members was positive with 
them feeling more informed about how the organisation can develop.

Jewish Community Council of Gateshead – Funding support (13/12/18)

Newcastle CVS supported the organisation to develop a National Lottery Community Fund 
Reaching Communities application. Over several months this work involved guidance on:

 Developing the project
 Being a critical friend on the applications, stages 1 and 2
 Liaising between the organisation and the funder
 Responding to questions

Page 25



16

This work contributed to the Jewish Community Council of Gateshead securing £319,011 from the 
Community Fund. Feedback from the organisation at a follow up meeting the worker and chair of 
the organisation said that Newcastle CVS had been invaluable in our understanding of the needs 
of the community and expressing what they hoped to achieve in the format that funder required.

Gateshead Access Panel – Closing organisation support (12/09/2018)

Newcastle CVS supported the organisation through the entire process of its closure, ensuring that 
the trustees, staff and members were able to deal with the wide range of complex issues involved. 
Over a period of several months the work involved:

 Liaising with the Charity Commission on their behalf
 Advising on staffing, redundancy, pension and consultation issues
 Advice on constitutional and procedural issues
 Supporting and advising on issues relating to ending their lease on premises, with contracts 

on office equipment such as photocopiers
 Practical support with physically clearing their premises, linking GAP with the volunteers at 

GoodGym
 Identifying alternative support for some of the organisations service-users, and liaising with 

other providers
 Participating in the organisation’s closing Special General Meeting to support Trustees, staff 

and members and ensure everyone understood their decisions

This work enabled the organisation to close cleanly and within charity law, and following their own 
constitution. As far as possible, it allowed for continuation of service for service-users, which 
substantially alleviated the concerns of the Trustees. Newcastle CVS staff were given a vote of 
thanks at the Special General Meeting for their practical support, and for their sensitivity and 
empathy throughout a very distressing time for all involved in the organisation, particularly the 
Trustees.

Page 26



17

Appendix 2

Infrastructure support to the voluntary and community sector in Gateshead

Representation and Networking

 Work with the sector to design and implement self-sustaining peer-led networks Create space 
for organisations to consider joint working and partnership opportunities

 Support the establishment of a network of distributed leadership and skills exchange across 
the sector
 

 Establish and administer a Gateshead VCS network

 Collation of views from the sector within Gateshead as part of the budget consultation process

 Represent the sector at key forums with public sector partners

 Facilitate an effective two-way dialogue between the sector and public sector partners

 Support the Councils’ ambition to establish a more collaborative and partnership based 
working relationship with the sector

 Focus on encouraging debate and development within the sector itself, strengthening its 
internal networks

Strategic Support

 Translate relevant national and local policy and/or legislative changes to a format outlining 
implications for local sector
 

 Raise awareness of, and respond to, emerging issues facing the sector, in collaboration with 
public sector partners

 Work with Neighbourhood Management and Volunteering Team (NMVT) to make strategic 
links across the sector, promoting best practice and proactively contributing to an evidence 
base of sector specific analysis, drawing on a range of research and information sources.

Core Organisational Support

Distribution of lead responsibilities

NMVT NCVS
Setting up organisations
Starting a new organisation and choosing a legal structure, including 
help to:
Become an unincorporated association
Become a registered charity with the Charity Commission
Become / convert to a CIO
Becoming a charitable trust
Incorporating an existing charity
Creating / becoming a charitable company
Governance
Advice on recruiting committee members and trustees
Job roles/descriptions for management committee members
Changing charitable company articles

Page 27



1

Running an organisation
Advice on changing an organisation’s structure
Advice on organisational policies/procedures, including AGMs
Advice on developing a fundable project
Organisational health checks
Policy development and business planning
Advice on delivering community events
Advice on quality benchmarking tools
HR and legal matters
ICT and digital development
Funding and sustainability
Pre - funding application checking
Advice on potential funding sources
How to prepare a project budget

Advice on cash flow forecasting and accounting procedures
Closing down an organisation
Closing a voluntary or community organisation, registered charity or 
charitable company  
Advice for trustees / directors / committee members, employees etc. 
during the dissolution process

 Ensure complementary and effective service delivery for sector organisations by liaising with 
NMVT.

 ad hoc technical advice and guidance to be provided on a case by case basis; this will be 
kept under review to monitor resource implications 

 Produce and circulate monthly sector news and advice email which will also be made 
available for download online via OurGateshead website.

 Participate in the reviews of Information, Advice and Advocacy Services, and the 
development of a new Voluntary Sector Compact

 Regularly review the core organisational support provision working proactively with 
stakeholders to understand changes in demand and seek solutions for identified gaps.

 The Provider(s) will work with the sector stakeholders to develop and coordinate a training 
programme for the sector.  Training topics should cover areas of priority identified by the 
sector and should be developed in consultation with NMVT

 Facilitate a funding advice service that has a prime focus on raising awareness of non-public 
grant sources of income and revenue generation 

OurGateshead Website

 Management based upon a work programme determine how best to support the 
development and promotion of the OurGateshead website

 ensure the OurGateshead domain name registrations are kept up to date and the website 
hosting service remains fit for purpose

 ensure as a priority that the information relating to groups and organisations hosted on the 
web site remains relevant, appropriate and up to date

Page 28



1

 OurGateshead website shall include information and guidance materials for community 
organisations regarding such topics as governance, organising and running community 
events, licensing requirements, community building management, and the exploration of the 
provision of an online booking facility for community venues with space for hire.

 assess the future design and functionality of the website and implement a programme of 
improvements to ensure the future sustainability of the site and will include a review of the 
performance measures in the first year of the contract to be agreed with the Council.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1 of 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

1 April 2019
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Report – Freedom of Information Act 
Procedure 2019

REPORT OF: Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services
and Governance

Summary

This report details the number of requests for information received by the Council under 
the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 from 1 January 2018 to 31 
December 2018.  The report provides a background to the Act highlights the number of 
requests received and provides information resulting from analyses of the requests.

Background 

1. This is the 13th annual report relating to requests received under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 and covers the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.  
The request handling procedure was developed in response to the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000, which placed legal obligations on public authorities to deal 
with written requests for information held by them, in recorded form at the time a 
request is made.

Procedure

2. The procedure has three steps, the first of which is ‘providing the information’ 
requested within the statutory timescale of 20 working days.  There is an electronic 
tracking system in which to log requests.  This tracking system provides a full audit 
trail of how the request has been handled and provides template response letters, 
which fulfil the statutory requirements of the Act.

3. The first stage relies on quickly providing the information requested, subject to the 
application of any exemption and payment of any necessary fee.  The second 
stage requires the Council to have an internal review process so that, if a requester 
is dissatisfied, they have an avenue of complaint, which is separate from the 
corporate complaints process.  The review stage involves the requester writing to 
the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance within 40 days of 
receiving a response, to request an independent review of the matter.

4. The third stage gives the requester a right of appeal to the Information 
Commissioner if he/she is still dissatisfied, following the internal review.

5. Over the period 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 the number of requests 
received was 1332, which represents a 17.63% decrease on requests received in 
the previous year and a549.76% increase since the implementation of the Act in 
2005.  

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



2 of 3

6. Of the requests received 90.54% were dealt with within the 20-day timescale.  This 
represents an increase of 0.06% in performance on the 2017 figure of 90.48% but 
is still high among other councils.  Sunderland 98%, Newcastle 84.10 % and 
Redcar and Cleveland 85.82%, with only Sunderland performing better. 

7. Five were subject to internal review.  The original decision maker’s decision was 
upheld in all cases.

8. Five requesters have exercised the right of appeal to the Information 
Commissioner.  The Information Commissioner upheld our decision to treat one 
applicant as vexatious. The applicant has now appealed to the First Tier Tribunal. 
The other four relate to treating the requester as vexatious. We are awaiting a 
decision from the Information Commissioner

9. The table below details how many requests have been received by Gateshead 
Council and its neighbouring authorities in 2017: -

Local Authority 2017 2018
Gateshead 1617 1332
Redcar & 
Cleveland

1092 1157

North Tyneside 1255
Northumberland 1309
South Tyneside 1234 1383
Sunderland 1571

10. Most requests come in by email now, 1328 by email 4 by letter.
11. Requests for information vary considerably and are difficult to categorise. We 

receive a lot about Brexit preparedness, lots from campaigners, some asking for 
policies and information about how decisions have been made. Many requests are 
becoming increasingly more complex with requesters asking for a lot of cross 
cutting information as part of a single request.

12. Requests have varied.  A lot of requests have sought information about council 
contracts, policies about car parking, staff sickness levels, what contingencies we 
have in case of no deal Brexit.

13. In 2018 requests appeared to be mainly from the press, particularly from junior 
reporters.  However, it is not always possible to identify the source of a request as 
the requester need only give a name and return address.

14. Because of reducing resources and in an effort to continue to improve the 
timeliness of responses and minimise the impact of any increase in requests the 
following measures have been taken: -

(a) Services are now proactively publishing more information online, as 
information published online is exempt from disclosure under the Act as it is 
‘information easily accessible by other means’, all staff have to do is send the 
requester a link to where they can obtain the information.  An example of 
where this has diminished the number of FOI requests is in finance where 

Page 32



3 of 3

they now publish data about outstanding business rates on a monthly basis, 
we also publish information about public health funerals.

(b) Published data as required by the ‘Transparency Agenda’.

(c) Trained more information champions in November 2018 to replace staff who 
have left, another session is booked in in April 2019.

Recommendation

The Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to note the report 
and assure themselves that FOI is operating effectively.

CONTACT:  Tanya Rossington                   extension:  2192  

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



     

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Work Programme Review and Forward Plan
 
REPORT OF:           Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services 
& Governance

______________________________________________________________________
Summary

This report is set out in two parts. The first part highlights how the work of this Committee 
has helped influence / shape the development of policy /decision making/performance 
improvement work during 2018 -19 and the second part details proposals for the 
development of the work programme for Overview and Scrutiny Committees (OSCs) and 
sets out the provisional work programme for the Corporate Resources OSC for the 
municipal year 2019-20.
________________________________________________________________________

Annual Review 

1. During 2018-19 the work of the OSC has helped to influence and shape policy 
development / decision making, performance improvement work via the following 
routes.

2. During this period the OSC, at its meeting on 10 July 2018 the OSC was consulted 
on the refresh of the Corporate Asset Strategy and was updated on the proposed 
objectives set out in the 2018-19 update of the Strategy and Management Plan 
2015-2020 (CASMP). At that time the OSC sought to understand and was provided 
with clarification on the position in relation to:-

 differences in garage rents for Council and non-Council tenants and how the 
Council determined its charging policy.

 access and condition of garages, garage sites and allotments.
 whether sufficient residential accommodation was being / planned to be built 

to meet housing need as detailed by the Thrive agenda.
 opportunities for wealth creation and how these were being taken into 

account in relevant plans / strategies.

Concerns were also raised that, as currently drafted, the Corporate Asset Strategy 
and Management Plan only covered the period 2015-20 and the OSC considered 
the period should be extended as this was not long enough.

As a result, it was subsequently agreed that the CASMP should cover the same 
period as the Housing Strategy and a new Corporate Asset Strategy and 
Management Plan would be written to cover the period 2018-2023.

As the Council owns nearly 50% of the brownfield sites and will have a major 
influence in delivering homes that meet Gateshead needs, as identified though its 

CORPORATE RESOURCES 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE
1 April 2019

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



Local Plan and Housing Strategy, this approach will ensure the Council can achieve 
continuity and longer-term planning.

3. The OSC, at its meeting on 25 June 2018, considered a case study on the impact of 
the Gateshead Fund during 2017-18 and looked at how it has helped to support, 
develop and build capacity in the voluntary and community sector and thereby help 
to strengthen Gateshead’s local communities. The OSC was provided with 
examples of the various local organisations which had benefited and an impact 
report as well as information on how the Fund linked with Gateshead’s Thrive 
agenda. The OSC was satisfied that the Fund was having a positive impact but 
checked that mechanisms were in place to assist community groups who struggle 
to access funds due to a lack of experience or knowledge in relation to the rules 
and criteria to meet when applying and to prevent crisis situations arising when their 
period of funding ended. The OSC also checked that there were effective 
monitoring systems in place to check that funding granted was being spent 
appropriately.

4. During this period the OSC has carried out a Review on “Helping to Increase 
Support / Capacity of the Voluntary Sector” focusing on the extent and nature of the 
support the Council provides to the VCS across the spectrum of service areas, how 
this is resourced and co - ordinated and will agree its interim findings and 
recommendations in relation to that Review at its meeting today. The OSC will 
agree its final report during its new work programme for 2019-20. These 
recommendations will then be presented to a future Cabinet meeting for approval 
and, subject to these recommendations being agreed, the OSC will then monitor 
implementation of these recommendations during its 2019 - 20 work programme.

5. The OSC has monitored Council performance generally, in those areas falling 
within its remit, at its meetings on 25 June 2018 and 3 December 2018 and Cabinet 
has had regard to the OSC’s views when considering Council performance overall.

6. The OSC has also monitored progress in relation to the following specific areas of 
performance and the OSC’s comments have been fed into the improvement work 
progressed by relevant service areas and where appropriate fed back to partners in 
the voluntary sector

 Absence in the Council
 Workforce Plan / Refresh of Workforce Strategy
 Corporate Asset Management 
 Strategic Resilience and Emergency Planning Framework
 Annual Health and Safety Performance
 Information Governance and Use of RIPA
 Corporate Complaints Procedure
 Volunteers Plan Progress
 Progress on Infrastructure Support to Voluntary and Community Sector

Development of 2019-20 Work Programme

7. Every year each Overview and Scrutiny Committee draws up a work programme 
based on the Council’s policy framework which is then agreed by the Council as 
part of the policy planning process.

Page 36



8. The Committee’s work programme is a rolling programme which sets the agenda 
for its six weekly meetings. It is the means by which it can address the interests of 
the local community, focus on improving services and seek to reduce inequalities in 
service provision and access to services.

9. Under the Council’s constitution the issues which will be considered by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees come from a number of sources:
 During the year the Committee may choose to scrutinise decisions made by the 

Cabinet to ensure decisions are taken properly;
 The Committee may be requested by the Cabinet to carry out reviews of 

particular issues in accordance with the Council’s policy priorities;
 The Committee will receive six-monthly reports on performance for comment to 

Cabinet;
 The Committee will receive reports on relevant service improvement reviews at 

key stages of development to confirm to Cabinet that reviews are progressing 
appropriately;

 Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
and Section 126 of the Police and Criminal Justice Act 2006 enable any member 
of the Council to refer to a relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee any local 
government matter and any crime and disorder matter which affects their ward 
or constituents.

 Members of the Committee may identify particular issues for consideration;
 Members may also examine issues in the Council’s Forward Plan; and
 In addition, where the Committee has reasonable concerns about a particular 

executive decision the call-in mechanism is available.
 

Proposals

10.This year OSC members have been involved in shaping the focus of the work of 
specific OSCs via email and an opportunity provided to comment on the emerging 
themes for specific OSCs at the scheduled January OSC meetings. The emerging 
themes have taken account of key performance issues/challenges/legislative 
changes affecting the work of the Council within the forthcoming twelve months 
which fall within the specific remits of each OSC and the 5 pledges under the Thrive 
agenda:-
 Put people and families at the heart of everything that we do
 Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
 Support our communities to support themselves and each other
 Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, 

innovation and growth across the borough.
 Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

11.Subsequently, the Council has consulted partner organisations on the emerging 
themes for each OSC for 2019-20. 

12.Details of the emerging issues / areas for potential review and the feedback from 
partners are set out at Appendix 2.

13.The attached provisional work programme (Appendix 1) has therefore taken 
account of the following:-
 Six-monthly performance reporting

Page 37



 The Thrive agenda and the Council Plan and partnership work generally
 Current issues referred to Committees
 Details of potential review topics/case studies
 Legislative provisions and guidance on the Councillor Call for Action

14.The work programme remains provisional as:-
 Cabinet has not had the opportunity to fully review its work programme and it 

may wish to refer further issues to Overview and Scrutiny Committees for further 
consideration;

 It does not take account of new policy issues which may be identified during the 
year, which Cabinet may refer to Overview and Scrutiny; and

 It does not include issues identified by members of committees on an ongoing 
basis during the year as a result of scrutiny of decisions, call – in and councillor 
call for action.

Recommendations

15.The Committee is asked to:-
a) Note the information contained in the annual review and provide any comments.
b) Endorse the Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s provisional work programme 

for 2019 -20 attached at Appendix 1 and refer it to Council on 23 May 2019            
for agreement.

c) Note that further reports will be brought to the Committee to identify any 
additional issues which the Committee may be asked to consider.

Contact:     Angela Frisby                            Ext:     2138

Page 38



Appendix 1

Issues to Slot in 

Corporate Resources OSC 2019/2020
17 June 19  Constitution/role/remit (to note)

 Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives – Year End 
Assessment and Performance Delivery 2018-19  

 Sickness Absence / Health of the Workforce - Annual Update 
 Brexit – Progress Update
 Review on Helping to Increase Support / Capacity of the Voluntary 

Sector – Interim Report (Findings)
 Freedom of Information - Annual Report 2018?
 OSC Work Programme

9 Sept 19  Review on Helping to Increase Support / Capacity of the Voluntary 
Sector – Final Report (Recommendations)

 Gateshead Fund - Annual Update 
 Resilience and Emergency Planning Performance Framework – six 

monthly progress update 
 Implementation of Workforce Strategy – Annual Update 
 OSC Work Programme

14 Oct 19  Implementation of Gateshead Volunteers Plan – Annual Report
 Support to Voluntary and Community Sector – six monthly progress 

update 
 OSC Work Programme

2 Dec 19  Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives – Six Monthly 
Assessment of Performance and Delivery 2019-20 (Including Thrive)

 Corporate Asset Management – Delivery and Performance Report 
 PSP Performance Monitoring
 Brexit Update / Lessons Learned
 OSC Work Programme

20 Jan 20  Annual Health and Safety Performance Report Corporate
 Complaints Procedure - Annual Report 2018-19 
 Work of Poverty Board – Annual Update
 OSC Work Programme

2 March 20  Information Governance Report – Annual Update 
 Resilience and Emergency Planning Performance Framework – six 

monthly progress update
 Welfare Reform / Universal Credit 
 OSC Work Programme

30 March 20  Freedom of Information - Annual Report 2019 
 Impact on place shaping partnership work as a result of 

establishment of two Combined Authorities in NE 
 Support to Voluntary and Community Sector – six monthly progress 

update 
 OSC Work Programme Review

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Implementation of Universal Credit in Gateshead
	4 Review on Helping to increase support to Voluntary and Community Sector - Evidence Gathering Session 4
	5 Contract Monitoring: Infrastructure Support to the Voluntary and Community Sector in Gateshead
	6 Freedom of Information Annual Report
	7 Annual Work Programme Review and Forward Plan
	DRAFT CRWork Programme2019-20v4


